Hearing Date: January 22, 2016

J:\MANDATES\2014\TC\14-TC-02 (Training for School Employee Mandated Reporters)\Ps&Gs\TOC.docx

ITEM 8

PROPOSED DECISION

AND

PARAMETERS AND GUIDELINES

Education Code Section 44691(b) and (c); and Penal Code Section 11165.7(d)

As Added or Amended by:

Statutes 2014, Chapter 797 (AB 1432)

Training for School Employee Mandated Reporters

14-TC-02

Lake Elsinore Unified School District, Claimant

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Exhibit A
Test Claim Decision, adopted December 3, 2015
Exhibit B
Draft Expedited Parameters and Guidelines, issued December 4, 2015
Exhibit C
State Controller's Office Comments, filed December 24, 2015

COMMISSION ON STATE MANDATES

980 NINTH STREET, SUITE 300 SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 PHONE: (916) 323-3562 FAX: (916) 445-0278 E-mail: csminfo@csm.ca.gov



December 4, 2015

Mr. Arthur Palkowitz Stutz Artiano Shinoff & Holtz 2488 Historic Decatur Road, Suite 200 San Diego, CA 92106

And Parties, Interested Parties, and Interested Persons (See Mailing List)

Re: Test Claim Decision, Draft Expedited Parameters and Guidelines, Schedule for Comments, and Notice of Hearing

Training for School Employee Mandated Reporters, 14-TC-02
Education Code Sections 44690 and 44691; and Penal Code Section 11165.7
As Added or Amended by: Statutes 2014, Chapter 797 (AB 1432)
Lake Elsinore Unified School District, Claimant

Dear Mr. Palkowitz:

On December 3, 2015, the Commission on State Mandates (Commission) adopted the test claim decision approving the above-entitled matter. State law provides that reimbursement, if any, is subject to Commission approval of parameters and guidelines for reimbursement of the mandated program, approval of a statewide cost estimate, a specific legislative appropriation for such purpose, a timely-filed claim for reimbursement, and subsequent review of the claim by the State Controller's Office.

Following is a description of the responsibilities of all parties and of the Commission during the parameters and guidelines phase.

Draft Expedited Parameters and Guidelines. Pursuant to California Code of Regulations, title 2, section 1183.9, the Commission staff is expediting the parameters and guidelines process by enclosing draft parameters and guidelines to assist the claimant. The proposed reimbursable activities are limited to those approved in the decision by the Commission.

Review of Draft Expedited Parameters and Guidelines. Proposed comments may be filed on staff's draft proposal by **December 24, 2015**. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 1183.9(b).)

<u>Rebuttals.</u> Written rebuttals may be submitted within 15 days of service of comments. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 1183.9(c).)

Adoption of Parameters and Guidelines. After review of the draft expedited parameters and guidelines and all proposed comments, Commission staff will prepare a proposed decision and recommend adoption by the Commission.

Reasonable Reimbursement Methodology and Statewide Estimate of Costs

Test Claimant and Department of Finance Submission of Letter of Intent. Within 30 days of the Commission's adoption of a decision on a test claim, the test claimant and the Department of Finance may notify the executive director of the Commission in writing of their intent to follow the process described in Government Code sections 17557.1—17557.2 and section 1183.11 of the Commission's regulations to develop a joint reasonable reimbursement methodology and statewide estimate of costs for the initial claiming period and budget year for reimbursement of

Mr. Palkowitz December 4, 2015 Page 2

costs mandated by the state. The written notification shall provide all information and filing dates as specified in Government Code section 17557.1(a).

<u>Test Claimant and Department of Finance Submission of Draft Reasonable Reimbursement Methodology and Statewide Estimate of Costs.</u> Pursuant to the plan, the test claimant and the Department of Finance shall submit the *Draft Reasonable Reimbursement Methodology and Statewide Estimate of Costs* to the Commission. See Government Code section 17557.1 for guidance in preparing and filing a timely submission.

Review of Proposed Reasonable Reimbursement Methodology and Statewide Estimate of Costs. Upon receipt of the jointly developed proposals, Commission staff shall notify all recipients that they shall have the opportunity to review and provide written comments concerning the draft reasonable reimbursement methodology and proposed statewide estimate of costs within 15 days of service. The test claimant and Department of Finance may submit written rebuttals to Commission staff.

Adoption of Reasonable Reimbursement Methodology and Statewide Estimate of Costs. At least 10 days prior to the next hearing, Commission staff shall review comments and issue a staff recommendation on whether the Commission should approve the draft reasonable reimbursement methodology and adopt the proposed statewide estimate of costs pursuant to Government Code section 17557.2.

You are advised that comments filed with the Commission are required to be simultaneously served on the other interested parties on the mailing list, and to be accompanied by a proof of service. However, this requirement may also be satisfied by electronically filing your documents. Please see http://www.csm.ca.gov/dropbox.shtml on the Commission's website for instructions on electronic filing. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 1181.3.) If you would like to request an extension of time to file comments, please refer to section 1187.9(a) of the Commission's regulations.

The parameters and guidelines for this matter are set for hearing on **January 22**, **2016**. Sincerely,

Heather Halsey
Executive Director

BEFORE THE

COMMISSION ON STATE MANDATES STATE OF CALIFORNIA

IN RE TEST CLAIM ON:

Education Code Sections 44690 and 44691; and Penal Code Section 11165.7

As Added or Amended by:

Statutes 2014, Chapter 797 (AB 1432)

Filed on June 1, 2015, by

Lake Elsinore Unified School District, Claimant Case No.: 14-TC-02

Training for School Employee Mandated Reporters

DECISION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 17500 ET SEQ.; CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2, DIVISION 2, CHAPTER 2.5, ARTICLE 7.

(Adopted December 3, 2015)

(Served December 4, 2015)

DECISION

The Commission on State Mandates (Commission) heard and decided this test claim during a regularly scheduled hearing on December 3, 2015. Arthur Palkowitz and George Landon appeared on behalf of the claimant, Lake Elsinore Unified School District. Donna Ferebee and Kimberly Leahy appeared on behalf of the Department of Finance (Finance).

The law applicable to the Commission's determination of a reimbursable state-mandated program is article XIII B, section 6 of the California Constitution, Government Code sections 17500 et seq., and related case law.

The Commission adopted the proposed decision to approve the test claim at the hearing by a vote of 4-0 as follows:

Member	Vote
Richard Chivaro, Representative of the State Controller, Vice Chairperson	Yes
Mark Hariri, Representative of the State Treasurer	Yes
Scott Morgan, Representative of the Director of the Office of Planning and Research	Yes
Sarah Olsen, Public Member	Absent
Eraina Ortega, Representative of the Director of the Department of Finance, Chairperson	Yes
Carmen Ramirez, City Council Member	Absent
Don Saylor, County Supervisor	Absent

Summary of the Findings

This test claim addresses Statutes 2014, chapter 797, which imposes new child abuse and neglect training requirements on school districts (K-12 school districts and county offices of education) for employees and persons working on their behalf who are identified as mandated reporters.

The Commission finds that Education Code section 44691 and Penal Code section 11165.7, as added and amended by Statutes 2014, chapter 797, impose a reimbursable state-mandated program on K-12 school districts and county offices of education for the following activities, beginning January 1, 2015:

- 1. Provide annually, within the first six weeks of each school year, and within the first six weeks of employment for school personnel hired during the course of the school year, training in the detection of child abuse and neglect, the proper action that school personnel should take in suspected cases of child abuse and neglect, and information that failure to report is a misdemeanor punishable by up to six months in jail and/or up to a fine of one thousand dollars to the following persons:
 - a) Certificated and classified employees of the school district that are mandated reporters identified in the Penal Code, except those working for a school district police or security department; and
 - b) Those persons who are mandated reporters identified in the Penal Code that are working on a school district's behalf to carry out the school district's core mandatory function to educate students.

The training may be provided by either using the online training module developed by CDSS or an alternative training program that complies with the test claim statute. The costs to develop child abuse and neglect training are *not* mandated by the state. (Ed. Code § 44691(b)(1), (c); Penal Code § 11165.7(d).)

- 2. Develop a process for all persons required to receive training to provide proof of completing the training within the first six weeks of each school year or within the first six weeks of that person's employment. The process developed may include, but not necessarily be limited to, the use of a sign-in sheet or the submission of a certificate of completion to the applicable governing board or body of the school district. (Ed. Code § 44691(b)(2).)
- 3. If the online training provided by CDSS is not used, report to the CDE the training being used in its place. (Ed. Code § 44691(c).)

All other provisions in Education Code section 44691 and Penal Code 11167.5, as added or amended by the 2014 test claim statute, do not impose a reimbursable state-mandated program.

COMMISSION FINDINGS

I. Chronology

06/01/2015	This test claim was filed with the Commission. ¹
06/04/2015	The test claim was deemed complete and issued for comment.
07/06/2015	The Department of Finance filed comments on the test claim. ²
08/06/2015	Lake Elsinore Unified School District (claimant) filed rebuttal to Finance's comments. ³
09/24/2015	Commission staff issued the draft proposed decision. ⁴

II. **Background**

A. Prior Law

A child abuse reporting law was first added to the Penal Code in 1963, and initially required medical professionals to report suspected child abuse to local law enforcement or child welfare authorities. The law was regularly expanded to include more professions required to report suspected child abuse (now termed "mandated reporters"), and in 1980, California reenacted and substantively amended the law, entitling it the "Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act," or "CANRA." The court in *Planned Parenthood Affiliates v. Van de Kamp* (1986) 181 Cal.App.3d 245, pages 258-260, provides an overview of the complete Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act, following the 1980 reenactment in Penal Code sections 11164 et seq. (footnotes omitted):

The law is designed to bring the child abuser to justice and to protect the innocent and powerless abuse victim. (See Comment, Reporting Child Abuse: When Moral Obligations Fail (1983) 15 Pacific L.J. 189.) The reporting law imposes a mandatory reporting requirement on individuals whose professions bring them into contact with children. (Id., at pp. 189-190.) Physical abuse, sexual abuse, willful cruelty, unlawful corporal punishment and neglect must be reported.

$\P...\P$

The reporting law applies to three broadly defined groups of professionals: "health practitioners," child care custodians, and employees of a child protective agency. "Health practitioners" is a broad category subdivided into "medical" and "nonmedical" practitioners, and encompasses a wide variety of healing professionals, including physicians, nurses, and family and child counselors. (§§ 11165, subds. (i), (j); 11165.2.) "Child care custodians" include teachers, day care workers, and a variety of public health

¹ Exhibit A, Test Claim, page 1. Based upon the filing date of June 1, 2015, the potential period of reimbursement begins July 1, 2013. However, since the test claim statutes became effective on January 1, 2015, the potential period of reimbursement begins on the effective date of the statute that imposes a state mandate.

² Exhibit B, Department of Finance Comments on Test Claim.

³ Exhibit C, Claimant's Rebuttal to Finance Comments.

⁴ Exhibit D, Draft Proposed Decision.

and educational professionals. (§§ 11165, subd. (h); 11165.1 [first of two identically numbered sections]; 11165.5.) Employees of "child protective agencies" consist of police and sheriff's officers, welfare department employees and county probation officers. (§ 11165, subd. (k).)

The Legislature acknowledged the need to distinguish between instances of abuse and those of legitimate parental control. "[T]he Legislature recognizes that the reporting of child abuse ... involves a delicate balance between the right of parents to control and raise their own children by imposing reasonable discipline and the social interest in the protection and safety of the child [I]t is the intent of the Legislature to require the reporting of child abuse which is of a serious nature and is not conduct which constitutes reasonable parental discipline." (Stats. 1980, ch. 1071, § 5, p. 3425.)

To strike the "delicate balance" between child protection and parental rights, the Legislature relies on the judgment and experience of the trained professional to distinguish between abusive and nonabusive situations. "[A]ny child care custodian, medical practitioner, nonmedical practitioner, or employee of a child protective agency who has knowledge of or observes a child in his or her professional capacity or within the scope of his or her employment whom he or she knows or reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse shall report the known or suspected instance of child abuse to a child protective agency '[R]easonable suspicion' means that it is objectively reasonable for a person to entertain such a suspicion, based upon facts that could cause a reasonable person in a like position, drawing when appropriate on his or her training and experience, to suspect child abuse." (§ 11166, subd. (a), italics added.) As one commentator has observed, "[t]he occupational categories ... are presumed to be uniquely qualified to make informed judgments when suspected abuse is not blatant." (See Comment, Reporting Child Abuse: When Moral Obligations Fail, supra., 15 Pacific L.J. at p. 214, fn. omitted.)

The mandatory child abuse report must be made to a "child protective agency," i.e., a police or sheriff's department or a county probation or welfare department. The professional must make the report "immediately or as soon as practically possible by telephone." The professional then has 36 hours in which to prepare and transmit to the agency a written report, using a form supplied by the Department of Justice. The telephone and the written reports must include the name of the minor, his or her present location, and the information that led the reporter to suspect child abuse. (§§ 11166, subd. (a); 11167, subd. (a); 11168.) Failure to make a required report is a misdemeanor, carrying a maximum punishment of six months in jail and a \$1,000 fine. (§ 11172, subd. (e).) . . .

Under the existing CANRA, all school district teachers and employees including instructional aides, teacher assistances, classified employees, and employees of a school district police or security department are mandated reporters. The previous version of CANRA also specified that employers are strongly encouraged to provide their employees who are mandated reporters with training in the duties imposed, however employers were not required to provide this training.

School districts that did not provide training were required to report to the California Department of Education the reasons why the training is not provided.⁵

B. Prior Commission Decisions

1. Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act ("CANRA")

The Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act requires a mandated reporter, which includes a teacher and other types of school employees, to report whenever he or she, in his or her professional capacity or within the scope of his or her employment, has knowledge of or has observed a child whom the mandated reporter knows or reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or neglect.

The *CANRA*, 01-TC-21 test claim, filed by San Bernardino Community College District, alleged that amendments enacted between 1975 and 2001 to California's mandatory child abuse reporting laws impose a reimbursable state-mandated program on school districts and community college districts.

On July 31, 2009, the Commission adopted the decision on the test claim, finding that K-12 school districts are not required to receive child abuse and neglect reports pursuant to Penal Code section 11165.9 and engage in follow-up reporting and investigation activities, but community college district police departments are required by the test claim statutes to perform these activities. In addition, the Commission determined that the statutes required all law enforcement agencies, including those maintained by K-12 school districts and community college districts, to receive reports of "known or suspected instances of child abuse" that require notification and cross-reporting to the appropriate agencies. However, pursuant to *Department of Finance v. Commission on State Mandates* (2009) 170 Cal.App.4th 1355 (*POBRA*), reimbursement under article XIII B, section 6 of the California Constitution was denied for these requirements because school districts and community college districts are authorized, but not required by the Education Code to employ peace officers and, thus, they are not mandated by state law to comply with these requirements.⁶

The Commission further concluded that Penal Code sections 11165.7 and 11174.3, as added or amended by statutes enacted between 1987 through 2001, mandate new programs or higher levels of service for K-12 school districts within the meaning of article XIII B, section 6 of the California Constitution, and impose costs mandated by the state pursuant to Government Code section 17514, beginning July 1, 2000, for the following specific new activities:

• Reporting to the State Department of Education the reasons why training is not provided, whenever school districts do not train their employees specified in Penal Code section 11165.7, subdivision (a), in the duties of mandated reporters under the child abuse reporting laws. (Pen. Code, § 11165.7(d).)⁷

⁵ Exhibit E, Senate Appropriations Committee fiscal summary of AB 1432, as amended August 4, 2014, page 1.

⁶ Education Code sections 38000 and 72330.

⁷ This activity has been deleted and replaced by the test claim statute, effective January 1, 2015.

Informing a selected member of the staff of the following requirements prior to the
interview whenever a suspected victim of child abuse or neglect is to be interviewed
during school hours, on school premises, and has requested that a staff member of the
school be present at the interview:

The purpose of the staff person's presence at the interview is to lend support to the child and enable him or her to be as comfortable as possible. However, the member of the staff so elected shall not participate in the interview. The member of the staff so present shall not discuss the facts or circumstances of the case with the child. The member of the staff so present, including, but not limited to, a volunteer aide, is subject to the confidentiality requirements of this article, a violation of which is punishable as specified in Penal Code section 11167.5. A staff member selected by a child may decline the request to be present at the interview. If the staff person selected agrees to be present, the interview shall be held at a time during school hours when it does not involve an expense to the school. (Pen. Code, § 11174.3(a).)

2. Interagency Child Abuse and Neglect Investigation Reports (ICAN)

In a separate test claim, *Interagency Child Abuse and Neglect Investigation Reports (ICAN)*, 00-TC-22, the County of Los Angeles alleged that amendments to California's mandatory child abuse reporting laws impose a reimbursable state-mandated program on local agencies. The test claim pled a number of changes to the law, particularly a reenactment in 1980, and substantive amendments in 1997 and 2000.

The Commission approved the test claim on December 6, 2007, for any city, county, and city and county that incurs increased costs beginning July 1, 1999, or later for specified activities added by subsequent statutes for the following categories of activities:

For agencies authorized to receive reports from mandated reporters of suspected child abuse to:

- Refer those reports to the correct agency when the recipient agency lacks jurisdiction;
- Cross-report to other local agencies with concurrent jurisdiction and to the district attorneys' offices;
- Report to licensing agencies;
- Make additional reports in the case of a child's death from abuse or neglect;
- Distribute the standardized forms to mandated reporters;
- Investigate reports of suspected child abuse for purposes of preparing and submitting the state "Child Abuse Investigation Report" Form SS 8583, or subsequent designated form, to the Department of Justice;
- Forward to the Department of Justice a report in writing of every case the agency investigates of known or suspected child abuse or severe neglect which is determined to be substantiated or inconclusive;

- Notify suspected abusers of listing in the Child Abuse Central Index; and
- Retain records, as specified.

In addition, a small number of activities were also approved for county licensing agencies and district attorneys' offices, as provided.

C. The Test Claim Statute; Statutes 2014, Chapter 797 (AB 1432)

Education Code section 44691(a), as added by Statutes 2014, chapter 797, effective on January 1, 2015, requires the California Department of Education (CDE), in consultation with the Office of Child Abuse Prevention (OCAP) in the California Department of Social Services (CDSS), to:

- Develop and disseminate information to all school districts, county offices of education, state special schools and diagnostic centers operated by the state, and charter schools, and their school personnel, regarding the detection and reporting of child abuse;
- Provide statewide guidance on the responsibilities of mandated reporters who are school personnel; and
- Develop appropriate means of instructing school personnel in the detection of child abuse and neglect and the proper action that school personnel should take in suspected cases of child abuse and neglect, including, but not limited to, an online training module to be provided by CDSS.

Education Code section 44691(b) requires school districts to annually train, using an online training module provided by the CDSS or other training as specified, employees and persons working on their behalf who are mandated reporters as defined in Penal Code section 11165.7, on the mandated reporting requirements. The list of school district employees defined as mandated reporters and required to be trained is broad and includes the following: teacher: instructional aide; teacher's aide or assistant; a classified employee; an administrative officer or certificated pupil personnel employee; an employee of a county office of education whose duties bring the employee into contact with children on a regular basis; an employee of a school district police or security department; and an athletic coach, athletic administrator, or athletic director that provides any combination of instruction for K-12 pupils.⁸ The training shall be provided to school personnel hired during the course of the school year, and shall include information that failure to report an incident of known or reasonably suspected child abuse or neglect is a misdemeanor punishable by up to six months confinement in county jail, or by a fine of \$1,000, or both. In addition, school districts are required to develop a process for all persons required to receive training under the bill to provide proof of completing this training within the first six weeks of each school year or within six weeks of that person's employment. The process may include, but not be limited to, the use of a sign-in sheet or the submission of a certificate of completion to the applicable governing body of the school district.

Finally, section 44691(c) requires school districts that do not use the online training module provided by CDSS, to report to CDE the training being used in its place.

_

⁸ Penal Code section 11165.7(a).

Penal Code section 11165.7 defines who is a mandated reporter and, as amended by Statutes 2014, chapter 797, replaces the requirement that schools report why they do not provide training, with the requirement that school districts and county offices of education train mandated reporters in their duties under the child abuse laws, including child abuse and neglect identification and reporting pursuant to Education Code section 44691.

According to the author of the test claim statute the additions to law are needed because:

In recent years, there has been an alarming increase in the incidents of unreported child abuse where one or more additional school employees were aware of the incident—illustrating gaping holes in these mandated reporters' knowledge of CANRA [California Child Abuse Neglect Reporting Act]. In the Redwood City School District, a teacher was arrested in the abuse of two five-year-old special needs students. In the wake of this horrible incident, five staff members were fired for failing to report the abuse despite their knowledge of it.

In the Brentwood Union School District, eleven employees knew but failed to tell authorities about an incident in which a special education teacher, who had already been convicted of child abuse, kicked an autistic student. The incident resulted in a \$950,000 settlement to the student's family. Although district documents in the Brentwood case illustrate that school officials conducted an internal investigation into the incident, parents ultimately reported the incident to police.

Despite the Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act's clear reporting requirements, school districts are merely 'encouraged' rather than required to provide employees who qualify as mandated reporters with training on either abuse identification or abuse reporting. The absence of training is a failure of our system that leaves millions of students at risk every single day.⁹

According to the Child Abuse Mandated Reporter Training Project cited in the committee analysis:

[I]n California, it is estimated that four children die each day in this country as a result of child abuse and neglect. The Federal Child Abuse Reporting act was passed in 1974 to address this issue. Over the years, numerous amendments have expanded the definition of child abuse and the list of persons who are required to report suspected child abuse. The CAMRTP is funded by the DSS, Office of Child abuse Prevention (OCAP) and the goal of this project is to have free training available for mandated child abuse reporters so they may carry out their responsibilities properly. Currently the CAMRTP provides free online training modules that are specifically tailored for educators. ¹⁰

⁹ Exhibit E, Assembly Committee on Public Safety bill analysis on AB 1432, as amended February 11, 2014.

¹⁰ Exhibit E, Assembly Committee on Education bill analysis on AB 1432, as amended March 26, 2014. The Federal Child Abuse Reporting Act is found in 42 United States Code, section 13031, and applies to "[a] person who, while engaged in a professional capacity or activity described in subsection (b) of this section on Federal land or in a federally operated (or contracted) facility …"

To implement the test claim statute, CDSS developed a free, self-paced online training course ("Mandated Reporter Training for Educators"), which takes between 90 and 180 minutes and includes instruction on the following topics: what the law requires of you as a mandated reporter, how to spot indicators of possible child abuse or neglect, how to talk to children about suspected abuse, how to make a report, what happens after a report is filed, and special issues related to child abuse reporting in the school environment. 11

In addition, for those districts that do not use the CDSS online training module, CDE has developed a form for reporting the alternative training used, in accordance with Education Code section 44691(c). The form asks the district to identify the name and title of the alternative training, the contact information for the training provider, and a description of the training, including topics covered. The form also asks an "optional" question about why alternate training was used and why the district did not use the training module created by CDSS. 12

III. **Positions of the Parties**

A. Claimant

Lake Elsinore Unified School District's June 1, 2015 test claim filing alleges that the 2014 amendments to the child abuse reporting statute in Penal Code section 11165.7, and the addition of Education code section 44691, result in reimbursable increased costs mandated by the state. The test claim alleges new activities for school districts as follows: 13

- Provide annual training to their employees in child abuse detection and mandatory reporting obligations under CANRA, including, child abuse and neglect detection, reporting procedures, and notice that failure to report an incident of known or reasonably suspected child abuse or neglect is a misdemeanor punishable up to six months in jail, a fine of \$1,000, or both. Training must occur within six weeks of the school year, or within six weeks of employment for a new hire. (Ed. Code § 44691(b)(1); Penal Code § 11165.7(d).)
- Develop a process for all persons required to receive training under this section to provide proof of completing the training within the first six weeks of the school year or within the first six weeks of that person's employment. (Ed. Code § 44691(b)(2).)
- Report to CDE the training being used in place of the CDSS online module, for those school districts that do not use the online training module developed by CDSS. (Ed. Code § 44691(c).)

The filing includes a declaration from the Lake Elsinore Unified School District Deputy Superintendent & Fiscal Support Services, George Landon, stating that the district will incur unreimbursed costs estimated at \$107,262 for fiscal year 2014-2015 for "the annual increased costs incurred by the claimant to implement the alleged mandate for one hour of training for

9

¹¹ Exhibit E, CDSS Mandated Reporter training home-page, available at: http://educators.mandatedreporterca.com/default.htm, accessed July 23, 2015.

¹² Exhibit E, "Reporting on Alternative Training Provided for Mandatory Reporters," form developed by CDE, available at: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/ap/, accessed July 23, 2015.

¹³ Exhibit A, Test Claim, pages 7-8, 12-13.

employees that are mandated reporters." ¹⁴ In rebuttal to Finance comments, the District reiterates its assertions from the claim filing and argues that Finance fails to address the budgeting or appropriations for funding allocated to the activities alleged in the claim. ¹⁵

B. Department of Finance

On July 6, 2015, Finance submitted comments on the test claim that to the extent new responsibilities are established for local educational agencies, there are many resources and methods available to meet this responsibility effectively and cost efficiently. Finance asserts the cost to school districts for the training should be minimal due to the free online training modules provided by the CDSS; the list of in-person trainers compiled by CDSS, some at no-cost and as short as an hour; as well as other free resources made available on the CDE website specifically developed for school districts.

IV. Discussion

Article XIII B, section 6 of the California Constitution provides in relevant part the following:

Whenever the Legislature or any state agency mandates a new program or higher level of service on any local government, the state shall provide a subvention of funds to reimburse such local government for the costs of such programs or increased level of service...

The purpose of article XIII B, section 6 is to "preclude the state from shifting financial responsibility for carrying out governmental functions to local agencies, which are 'ill equipped' to assume increased financial responsibilities because of the taxing and spending limitations that articles XIII A and XIII B impose." Thus, the subvention requirement of section 6 is "directed to state-mandated increases in the services provided by [local government] …" 17

Reimbursement under article XIII B, section 6 is required when the following elements are met:

- 1. A state statute or executive order requires or "mandates" local agencies or school districts to perform an activity. 18
- 2. The mandated activity either:
 - a. Carries out the governmental function of providing a service to the public; or
 - b. Imposes unique requirements on local agencies or school districts and does not apply generally to all residents and entities in the state. 19

¹⁵ Exhibit C, Claimant's Rebuttal to Finance Comments, page 2.

¹⁴ Exhibit A, Test Claim, page 20.

 $^{^{16}}$ County of San Diego v. State of California (1997) 15 Cal.4th 68, 81.

¹⁷ County of Los Angeles v. State of California (County of Los Angeles I) (1987) 43 Cal.3d 46, 56.

¹⁸ San Diego Unified School Dist. v. Commission on State Mandates (San Diego Unified School Dist.) (2004) 33 Cal.4th 859, 874.

¹⁹ *Id.*, pages 874-875 (reaffirming the test set out in *County of Los Angeles*, *supra*, 43 Cal.3d 46, 56).

- 3. The mandated activity is new when compared with the legal requirements in effect immediately before the enactment of the test claim statute or executive order and it increases the level of service provided to the public.²⁰
- 4. The mandated activity results in the local agency or school district incurring increased costs, within the meaning of section 17514. Increased costs, however, are not reimbursable if an exception identified in Government Code section 17556 applies to the activity.²¹

The Commission is vested with exclusive authority to adjudicate disputes over the existence of state-mandated programs within the meaning of article XIII B, section 6.²² The determination whether a statute or executive order imposes a reimbursable state-mandated program is a question of law.²³ In making its decisions, the Commission must strictly construe article XIII B, section 6, and not apply it as an "equitable remedy to cure the perceived unfairness resulting from political decisions on funding priorities."24

- A. The Test Claim Statute Imposes a State-Mandate on K-12 School Districts to Provide Training to Specified School District Employees, and Specified Persons Who Are Working on a School District's Behalf to Carry Out the School District's Core Mandatory Function, Who Are Mandated Reporters; and to Develop a Process for All Persons Required to Receive Training Pursuant to Education Code Section 44691 to Provide Proof of Completing the Training.
 - 1. The test claim statute requires K-12 school districts to provide annually, within the first six weeks of each school year, and within the first six weeks of employment for school personnel hired during the course of the school year, training in the detection of child abuse and neglect and the proper action that school personnel should take in suspected cases of child abuse and neglect, and to develop a process that provides proof of completion of the training. The development of training is not required by the plain language of the statute.

Education Code section 44691(b) requires K-12 school districts to provide training to "employees and persons working on their behalf who are mandated reporters as defined in Penal Code section 11165.7." The training provided must consist of the information described in section 44691(a); i.e., training "in the detection of child abuse and neglect and the proper action that school personnel should take in suspected cases of child abuse and neglect." In addition, the training must "include information that failure to report is a misdemeanor punishable by up to six

²⁰ San Diego Unified School Dist., supra, 33 Cal.4th 859, 874-875, 878; Lucia Mar Unified School District v. Honig (1988) 44 Cal.3d 830, 835.

²¹ County of Fresno v. State of California (1991) 53 Cal.3d 482, 487; County of Sonoma v. Commission on State Mandates (Cal. Ct. App. 1st Dist. 2000) 84 Cal. App. 4th 1265, 1284; Government Code sections 17514 and 17556.

²² Kinlaw v. State of California (1991) 53 Cal.3d 482, 487.

²³ County of San Diego, supra, 15 Cal.4th 68, 109.

²⁴ County of Sonoma, supra, 84 Cal.App.4th 1265, 1280 [citing City of San Jose v. State of California (1996) 45 Cal.App.4th 1802, 1817].

months in jail and/or up to a fine of one thousand dollars."²⁵ The training must be provided annually, within the first six weeks of each school year, and within the first six weeks of employment for school personnel hired during the course of the school year.²⁶

School districts can comply with the training requirement by using the free, self-paced online training module developed by the CDSS. The online training program provided by CDSS takes between 90 and 180 minutes and includes instruction on the following: what the law requires of a mandate reporter; how to spot indicators of possible child abuse or neglect; how to talk to children about suspected abuse; how to make a report; what happens after a report is filed; and special issues related to child abuse reporting in the school environment; and the potential penalties for failure to report.²⁷ Under these circumstances, only the staff time taken by school district employees and persons working on their behalf to take the training would be required.

Additionally, Education Code section 44691(b) states "[e]xcept as provided in subdivision (c)... [s]chool districts...who do not use the online training module provided by the State Department of Social Services shall report to the State Department of Education the training being used in its place." The Commission finds that the plain language of Education Code section 44691(b) and (c) permits a school district to choose an alternative training program, and not use the training developed by CDSS. However, the statute does not require a district to develop a child abuse training program for mandated reporters. The legislative history of the test claim statute supports this conclusion as well. An earlier version of the bill, dated May 7, 2014 provided:

school districts...[shall] annually provide training, as appropriate, to their employees and persons working on their behalf, who are mandated reporters, on the mandated reporting requirements...²⁸

This version did not contain any language requiring school districts to provide the training using the online training module provided by CDSS. Thus, under this version, a school district could develop their own training course to comply with the bill. The committee analysis for this version of the bill discussed the cost that some districts had previously incurred to develop child abuse and neglect training when the training was encouraged by the state. Los Angeles Unified School District (LAUSD), for example, had previously spent \$85,000 to develop a child abuse awareness training video and an annual online assessment.²⁹

The subsequent version of the bill, amended May 23, 2015, tightened the language and stated that school districts shall:

²⁷ Exhibit E, CDSS Mandated Reporter training, home page, available at: http://educators.mandatedreporterca.com/default.htm, accessed July 23, 2015; CDSS Mandated Reporter training, lesson 2, "failure to report," available at: http://educators.mandatedreporterca.com/lesson2/lesson2p6.htm, accessed September 16, 2015.

²⁵ Education Code section 44691(b)(1); Penal Code section 11165.7(d).

²⁶ Education Code section 44691(b)(1) and (2).

²⁸ Exhibit E, Assembly Bill No. 1432 (2013-2014 Reg. Sess.), as amended May 7, 2014.

²⁹ Exhibit E, Assembly Committee on Appropriations bill analysis on AB 1432, as amended May 7, 2014.

Except as provided in subdivision (c), *provide annual training, using the online training module provided by the department* to their employees and persons working on their behalf who are mandated reporters...³⁰

The exception provided in subdivision (c) acknowledges that some school districts, such as LAUSD, already developed training, and therefore, are permitted to continue to use the training already developed, in order to comply with the statute. The plain language of the test claim statute, as enacted, does not require school districts to develop a training program. Moreover, if a school district does not use the training developed by CDSS, it is required by Education Code section 44691(c) to report to CDE the training being used in its place.

And, finally, Education Code section 44691(b)(2) requires school districts to "develop a process for all persons required to receive training pursuant to this section to provide proof of completing the training within the first six weeks of each school year or within the first six weeks of that person's employment." Section 44691 further provides that the "process developed under this paragraph may include, but not necessarily be limited to, the use of a sign-in sheet or the submission of a certificate of completion to the applicable governing board or body" of the school district or county office of education.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that Education Code section 44691(b) and (c) and Penal Code section 11167.5(d), require K-12 school districts to provide annually, within the first six weeks of each school year, and within the first six weeks of employment for school personnel hired during the course of the school year, training in the detection of child abuse and neglect and the proper action that school personnel should take in suspected cases of child abuse and neglect. In addition, the training shall include information that failure to report is a misdemeanor punishable by up to six months in jail and/or up to a fine of one thousand dollars. The training may be provided by either using the online training module developed by CDSS or an alternative training program that complies with the test claim statute. If a school district does not use the training developed by CDSS, it is required by Education Code section 44691(c) to report to CDE the training being used in its place. The development of child abuse and neglect training is not required by the plain language of the statute. In addition, school districts are required to develop a process that provides proof of completion of the child abuse and neglect training.

2. The test claim statute imposes a state-mandated requirement on K-12 school districts to provide training to all school district certificated and classified employees that are mandated reporters, *except* those working for a school district police or security department, and to provide training to those persons who are mandated reporters that are working on a school district's behalf to carry out the school district's core mandatory function to educate students.

The activities required by the test claim statute are legally compelled and, thus, mandated by state law. ³¹ However, the scope of the mandate to provide the training needs further analysis. Education Code sections 44691(a),(b) and Penal Code section 11167.5(d) mandate school districts to provide child abuse and neglect training for "their *employees and persons working on*"

³⁰ Exhibit E, Assembly Bill No. 1432 (2013-2014 Reg. Sess.), as amended May 23, 2014.

³¹ Department of Finance v. Commission on State Mandates (Kern High School Dist.) (2009) 30 Cal.4th 727, 731.

their behalf who are mandated reporters" as defined in Penal Code section 11165.7(a). As described below, the Commission finds that the test claim statute imposes a state-mandated program on K-12 school districts to provide training to all school district certificated and classified employees who are mandated reporters, except those working for a school district police or security department, and those persons who are mandated reporters that are working on a school district's behalf to carry out the school district's core mandatory function to educate students.

a) <u>K-12 school districts are not mandated by the state to provide child abuse and neglect</u> training for employees of a school district police or security department.

As stated above, the test claim statute requires school districts to provide child abuse and neglect training for school district employees who are mandated reporters. Penal Code section 11165.7(a)(16) identifies "an employee of a school district police or security department" as a mandated reporter. The Commission finds, however, that school districts are not mandated by the state to provide child abuse and neglect training for employees "of a school district police or security department" because the cost of these activities is triggered by a local discretionary decision.

In 2009, the Department of Finance challenged a decision of the Commission, arguing that school districts were not mandated by state law to comply with the requirements of the Peace Officer Procedural Bill of Rights Act (POBRA) because school districts were authorized, but not required to hire peace officers or maintain a police department. The court in *Department of Finance v. Commission on State Mandates* (2009) 170 Cal.App.4th 1355 (*POBRA*) stated there was no dispute that school districts are not legally compelled by state law to hire police and security officers based on the plain language of Education Code section 38000.³² Education Code section 38000(a) specifically states that "[t]he governing board of a school district *may establish a security department* under the supervision of a chief of security as designated by, and under the direction of, the superintendent of the school district." Section 38000(b) states that "[t]he governing board of a school district *may establish a school police department* under the supervision of a school chief of police and, in accordance with Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 45100) of Part 25, may employ peace officers, as defined in subdivision (b) of Section 830.32 of the Penal Code, to ensure the safety of school district personnel and pupils, and the security of the real and personal property of the school district."

The court also held there was no concrete evidence in the record that school districts are practically compelled to maintain their own police or security departments when they can rely on the general law enforcement resources of cities and counties. The court agreed that police protection is an essential and basic function of cities and counties, and that the requirements imposed by the POBRA statutes for city and county law enforcement personnel were "prima facie reimbursable," even though cities and counties have discretion as to the number of personnel they hire. However, police protection is not an essential and basic function of a school district. "It is not essential unless there is a showing that, as a practical matter, exercising the authority to hire peace officers is the only reasonable means to carry out their core mandatory functions" to educate students. A finding of practical compulsion requires a concrete showing that reliance upon the general law enforcement resources of cities and counties will result in such

³² Department of Finance (POBRA), supra, 170 Cal.App.4th 1355, 1366.

severe adverse consequences. Accordingly, although school districts were required by law to comply with the POBRA statutes, reimbursement was not required because the statutes did not impose a state-mandated program on school districts.³³

The court's holding in *Department of Finance (POBRA)* decision applies in this case. School districts are not legally compelled by state law to hire police and security personnel. In addition, there is no evidence in the record that school districts are practically compelled to hire such personnel when they can rely on the general law enforcement resources of cities and counties.

Accordingly, the Commission finds that school districts are not mandated by the state to provide child abuse and neglect training pursuant to Education Code section 44691 (b),(c), and Penal Code section 11165.7(d), for employees "of a school district police or security department."

b) Providing child abuse and neglect training for all other school district employees and persons working on the district's behalf to carry out the school district's core mandatory function to educate students is mandated by the state.

The following employees of a K-12 school district are currently defined as mandated reporters in Penal Code section 11165.7(a): teacher; instructional aide; teacher's aide or assistant employed by a public school; a classified employee of a public school; a certificated pupil personnel employee of a public school; an administrator or employee of a public organization whose duties require direct contact and supervision of children; an employee of a county office of education whose duties bring the employee into contact with children on a regular basis; and an athletic coach, athletic administrator, or athletic director that provides any combination of instruction for K-12 pupils.³⁴

There are other mandated reporters listed in Penal Code section 11165.7(a) that may also be employed by a school district, including nurses and psychologists licensed under the Business and Professions Code.³⁵ Under existing law, school districts are required to "give diligent care to the health and physical development of pupils, and may employ certified persons for the work."36 Pursuant to Education Code section 49426, nurses may be employed by a school district if the person is a registered nurse licensed under the Business and Professions Code who has completed the additional educational requirements for a health and development services credential. School nurses perform several duties, which include conducting immunization programs, accessing and evaluating the health and developmental status of pupils to identify specific physical disorders or other factors relating to the learning process, and contributing significant information in order to modify the pupils' educational plans.³⁷ Similarly, psychologists are identified as mandated reporters³⁸ and, pursuant to Education Code sections 49422 and 49424, school psychologists employed by a district must hold a services credential with a specialization in health, a school psychologist credential, or a general pupil personnel

³³ *Id.*, pages 1367-1368.

³⁴ Penal Code section 11165.7(a)(1)-(5), (8), (9), (42).

³⁵ Penal Code section 11165.7(a)(21).

³⁶ Education Code section 49400.

³⁷ Education Code section 49426.

³⁸ Penal Code section 11165.7(a)(21).

services credential. The primary objective of a school psychologist "is the application of scientific principles of learning and behavior to ameliorate school-related problems and to facilitate the learning and development of children in the public schools of California."³⁹

The test claim statute also requires school districts to provide training to persons working on their behalf who are mandated reporters under the Penal Code. For example, federal law requires states to guarantee to disabled pupils the right to receive a free and appropriate public education that emphasizes special education and related services.⁴⁰ The term "related services" means those services necessary for a pupil to receive a free and appropriate education and may include counseling, psychological, rehabilitation, and medical services, and these services are required to be provided by school districts. 41 The Legislature has stated its intent that psychological and health services for individuals with exceptional needs shall be available to each school site. 42 To implement legislative intent, Education Code sections 56361.5, 56366, and 56369 provide that a school district may contract with hospitals, nonpublic and nonsectarian schools, and other public agencies to provide special education or related services to individuals with exceptional needs. If a person is employed by a hospital, nonpublic and nonsectarian school, or another public agency that contracts with a school district to provide special education services, and is also identified as a mandated reporter (i.e., a physician, psychologist, nurse, or counselor licensed under the Business and Professions Code; or a teacher's aide employed at a private school), 43 then the school district is required by the test claim statute to provide to those persons the child abuse and neglect training.

The list of mandated reporters required to receive child abuse and neglect training by a school district is broad and includes certificated and classified employees, and many of those persons working on behalf of a district. As recognized by the courts, school districts may have discretion with respect to the number of employees they hire and how they carry out their core mandatory function to educate students. Nevertheless, when carrying out their core mandatory function, new activities required by state law are mandated by the state.⁴⁴

Accordingly, the Commission finds that the test claim statute imposes a state-mandate on K-12 school districts to provide training to all school district certificated and classified employees that are mandated reporters, except those working for a school district police or security department, and those persons who are mandated reporters that are working on a school district's behalf to carry out the school district's core mandatory function to educate students.

B. The State Mandated Activities Impose a New Program or Higher Level of Service Within the Meaning of Article XIII B, Section 6 of the California Constitution.

³⁹ Education Code section 49424.

⁴⁰ Title 20, United States Code, section 1401(26); Code of Federal Regulations, title 34, section 300.34.

⁴¹ Education Code sections 56000, 56030, and 56363.

⁴² Education Code section 56001(1).

⁴³ Penal Code section 11165.7(a)(2), (21).

⁴⁴ Department of Finance (POBRA), supra, 170 Cal.App.4th 1355, page 1367; San Diego Unified School Dist., supra, 33 Cal.4th page 888.

As stated above, the Commission finds that the following activities are newly required and mandated by the state on K-12 school districts beginning January 1, 2015:

- 1. Provide annually, within the first six weeks of each school year, and within the first six weeks of employment for school personnel hired during the course of the school year, training in the detection of child abuse and neglect, the proper action that school personnel should take in suspected cases of child abuse and neglect, and information that failure to report is a misdemeanor punishable by up to six months in jail and/or up to a fine of one thousand dollars to the following persons:
 - a) Certificated and classified employees of the school district who are mandated reporters identified in the Penal Code, *except* those working for a school district police or security department; and
 - b) Those persons who are mandated reporters identified in the Penal Code who are working on a school district's behalf to carry out the school district's core mandatory function to educate students.

The training may be provided by either using the online training module developed by CDSS or an alternative training program that complies with the test claim statute. The costs to develop child abuse and neglect training are *not* mandated by the state. (Ed. Code § 44691(b)(1), (c); Penal Code § 11165.7(d).)

- 2. Develop a process for all persons required to receive training to provide proof of completing the training within the first six weeks of each school year or within the first six weeks of that person's employment. The process developed may include, but not necessarily be limited to, the use of a sign-in sheet or the submission of a certificate of completion to the applicable governing board or body of the school district. (Ed. Code § 44691(b)(2).)
- 3. If the online training provided by CDSS is not used, report to the CDE the training being used in its place. (Ed. Code § 44691(c).)

These activities constitute a new program or higher level of service within the meaning of article XIII B, section 6 of the California Constitution because they are unique to local school districts and provide an increased level of service to the public. 45 As described in the Background, the test claim statute increases the level of service provided to the public because it was enacted in light of the finding that "there has been an alarming increase in the incidents of unreported child abuse where one or more additional school employees were aware of the incident—illustrating gaping holes in these mandated reporters' knowledge of CANRA."46 According to the Assembly Floor analysis, "[t]he absence of training is a failure of our system that leaves millions of students at risk every single day."⁴⁷ The Commission finds that providing training to ensure reporting of child abuse provides a service to the public.

⁴⁵ Carmel Valley Fire Protection Dist. v. State of California (1987) 190 Cal.App.3d 521, 537.

⁴⁶ Exhibit E, Assembly Committee on Public Safety bill analysis on AB 1432, as amended February 11, 2014.

⁴⁷ Exhibit E, Assembly Floor analysis on AB 1432, as amended August 4, 2014.

Accordingly, the newly required activities impose a state-mandated new program or higher level of service within the meaning of article XIII B, section 6 of the California Constitution.

C. The Test Claim Statute Imposes Costs Mandated by the State Pursuant to Article XIII B, Section 6 of the California Constitution and Government Code Section 17514.

Government Code section 17514 provides in relevant part the following:

"Costs mandated by the state" means any *increased costs* which a local agency or school district is required to incur after July 1, 1980, as a result of any statute enacted on or after January 1, 1975...which mandates a new program or higher level of service within the meaning of Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution. (Emphasis added.)

Government Code section 17564(a) requires that a test claim need only allege costs exceeding \$1,000. In addition, section 17556 provides several exceptions to "costs mandated by the state."

The claimant, Lake Elsinore Unified School District, submitted a declaration from George Landon, Deputy Superintendent & Fiscal Support Services, which declares on May 21, 2015 that an additional \$107,262 will be incurred for "the annual increased costs incurred by the claimant to implement the alleged mandate for one hour of training for employees that are mandated reporters." Claimant also asserts that the statewide cost to implement the alleged mandate is estimated at \$10,000,000. There is no analysis or evidence provided regarding how this estimate was calculated. There is no evidence that the exceptions in Government Code section 17556 apply to this test claim, or evidence disputing the claimant's assertion of costs.

Therefore, the Commission finds that the test claim statute imposes costs mandated by the state within the meaning of article XIII B, section 6 of the California Constitution and Government Code section 17514, with the period of reimbursement beginning January 1, 2015.

V. Conclusion

Based on the foregoing analysis, the Commission finds that Education Code section 44691 and Penal Code section 11165.7, as added and amended by Statutes 2014, chapter 797, impose a reimbursable state-mandated program on K-12 school districts and county offices of education for the following activities, beginning January 1, 2015:

- 1. Provide annually, within the first six weeks of each school year, and within the first six weeks of employment for school personnel hired during the course of the school year, training in the detection of child abuse and neglect, the proper action that school personnel should take in suspected cases of child abuse and neglect, and information that failure to report is a misdemeanor punishable by up to six months in jail and/or up to a fine of one thousand dollars to the following persons:
 - a) Certificated and classified employees of the school district who are mandated reporters identified in the Penal Code, *except* those working for a school district police or security department; and

-

⁴⁸ Exhibit A, Test Claim, page 14.

b) Those persons who are mandated reporters identified in the Penal Code who are working on a school district's behalf to carry out the school district's core mandatory function to educate students.

The training may be provided by either using the online training module developed by CDSS or an alternative training program that complies with the test claim statute. The costs to develop child abuse and neglect training are *not* mandated by the state. (Ed. Code § 44691(b)(1) and (c); Penal Code § 11165.7(d).)

- 2. Develop a process for all persons required to receive training to provide proof of completing the training within the first six weeks of each school year or within the first six weeks of that person's employment. The process developed may include, but not necessarily be limited to, the use of a sign-in sheet or the submission of a certificate of completion to the applicable governing board or body of the school district. (Ed. Code § 44691(b)(2).)
- 3. If the online training provided by CDSS is not used, report to the CDE the training being used in its place. (Ed. Code § 44691(c).)

All other provisions in Education Code section 44691 and Penal Code 11167.5, as added or amended by the 2014 test claim statute, do not impose a reimbursable state-mandated program.

COMMISSION ON STATE MANDATES

Heather Halsey, Executive Director

980 NINTH STREET, SUITE 300 SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 PHONE: (916) 323-3562 FAX: (916) 445-0278 E-mail: csminfo@csm.ca.gov



RE: **Decision**

> Training for School Employee Mandated Reporters, 14-TC-02 Education Code Sections 44690 and 44691; Penal Code Section 11165.7 As Added or Amended by: Statutes 2014, Chapter 797 (AB 1432) Lake Elsinore Unified School District, Claimant

On December 3, 2015, the foregoing decision of the Commission on State Mandates was adopted on the above-entitled matter.

Dated: December 4, 2015

DECLARATION OF SERVICE BY EMAIL

I, the undersigned, declare as follows:

I am a resident of the County of Sacramento and I am over the age of 18 years, and not a party to the within action. My place of employment is 980 Ninth Street, Suite 300, Sacramento, California 95814.

On December 4, 2015, I served the:

Test Claim Decision, Draft Expedited Parameters and Guidelines, Schedule for Comments, and Notice of Hearing

Training for School Employee Mandated Reporters, 14-TC-02 Education Code Sections 44690 and 44691; and Penal Code Section 11165.7 As Added or Amended by: Statutes 2014, Chapter 797 (AB 1432) Lake Elsinore Unified School District, Claimant

By making it available on the Commission's website and providing notice of how to locate it to the email addresses provided on the attached mailing list.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct, and that this declaration was executed on December 4, 2015 at Sacramento, California.

Jill L. Magee

Commission on State Mandates 980 Ninth Street, Suite 300 Sacramento, CA 95814

(916) 323-3562

COMMISSION ON STATE MANDATES

Mailing List

Last Updated: 10/29/15 Claim Number: 14-TC-02

Matter: Training for School Employee Mandated Reporters

Claimant: Lake Elsinore Unified School District

TO ALL PARTIES, INTERESTED PARTIES, AND INTERESTED PERSONS:

Each commission mailing list is continuously updated as requests are received to include or remove any party or person on the mailing list. A current mailing list is provided with commission correspondence, and a copy of the current mailing list is available upon request at any time. Except as provided otherwise by commission rule, when a party or interested party files any written material with the commission concerning a claim, it shall simultaneously serve a copy of the written material on the parties and interested parties to the claim identified on the mailing list provided by the commission. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 1181.3.)

Amber Alexander, Department of Finance

915 L Street, Sacramento, Ca Phone: (916) 445-0328 Amber.Alexander@dof.ca.gov

Socorro Aquino, State Controller's Office

Division of Audits, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 322-7522 SAquino@sco.ca.gov

 ${\bf Harmeet\ Barkschat}, {\it Mandate\ Resource\ Services, LLC}$

5325 Elkhorn Blvd. #307, Sacramento, CA 95842

Phone: (916) 727-1350 harmeet@calsdrc.com

Lacey Baysinger, State Controller's Office

Division of Accounting and Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 324-0254 lbaysinger@sco.ca.gov

Julia Blair, Senior Commission Counsel, Commission on State Mandates

980 9th Street, Suite 300, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 323-3562 julia.blair@csm.ca.gov

Mike Brown, School Innovations & Advocacy

5200 Golden Foothill Parkway, El Dorado Hills, CA 95762

Phone: (916) 669-5116

mikeb@sia-us.com

J. Bradley Burgess, MGT of America

895 La Sierra Drive, Sacramento, CA 95864

Phone: (916)595-2646 Bburgess@mgtamer.com

Gwendolyn Carlos, State Controller's Office

Division of Accounting and Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 323-0706 gcarlos@sco.ca.gov

Pete Cervinka, Department of Social Services (A-24)

744 P Street, MS 17-27, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 657-2598 pete.cervinka@dss.ca.gov

Annette Chinn, Cost Recovery Systems, Inc.

705-2 East Bidwell Street, #294, Folsom, CA 95630

Phone: (916) 939-7901 achinners@aol.com

David Cichella, California School Management Group

3130-C Inland Empire Blvd., Ontario, CA 91764

Phone: (209) 834-0556 dcichella@csmcentral.com

Patricia Cos, State Board of Education

1430 N Street, Suite #5111, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 319-0827 PdeCos@cde.ca.gov

Joshua Daniels, Attorney, California School Boards Association

3251 Beacon Blvd, West Sacramento, CA 95691

Phone: (916) 669-3266 jdaniels@csba.org

Marieta Delfin, State Controller's Office

Division of Accounting and Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 322-4320 mdelfin@sco.ca.gov

Andra Donovan, San Diego Unified School District

Legal Services Office, 4100 Normal Street, Room 2148, San Diego, CA 92103

Phone: (619) 725-5630 adonovan@sandi.net

Florence Eng, Internal Auditor, San Jose Unified School District

855 Lenzen Avenue, San Jose, CA 95126

Phone: (408) 535-6144

feng@sjusd.org

$\textbf{Donna Ferebee}, Department\ of\ Finance$

915 L Street, Suite 1280, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-3274

donna.ferebee@dof.ca.gov

Chris Ferguson, Department of Finance

Education Systems Unit, 915 L Street, 7th Floor, 915 L Street, 7th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-3274 Chris.Ferguson@dof.ca.gov

Susan Geanacou, Department of Finance

915 L Street, Suite 1280, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-3274 susan.geanacou@dof.ca.gov

Dillon Gibbons, Legislative Representative, California Special Districts Association

1112 I Street Bridge, Suite 200, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 442-7887 dillong@csda.net

Paul Golaszewski, Legislative Analyst's Office

925 L Street, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 319-8341 Paul.Golaszewski@lao.ca.gov

Rebecca Hamilton, Department of Finance

Education Systems Unit, 915 L Street, 7th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0328

Rebecca.Hamilton@dof.ca.gov

Ed Hanson, Department of Finance

Education Systems Unit, 915 L Street, 7th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0328 ed.hanson@dof.ca.gov

Mark Ibele, Senate Budget & Fiscal Review Committee

California State Senate, State Capitol Room 5019, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 651-4103 Mark.Ibele@sen.ca.gov

${\bf Michael\ Johnston}, {\it Clovis\ Unified\ School\ District}$

1450 Herndon Ave, Clovis, CA 93611-0599

Phone: (559) 327-9000

michaeljohnston@clovisusd.k12.ca.us

Lorena Jung, San Jose Unified School District

855 Lenzen Avenue, San Jose, CA 95126

Phone: (408) 535-6000 ljung@sjusd.org

Jill Kanemasu, State Controller's Office

Division of Accounting and Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 322-9891 jkanemasu@sco.ca.gov

Dan Kaplan, Fiscal & Policy Analyst, Legislative Analyst's Office

925 L Street, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 319-8353 Dan.Kaplan@lao.ca.gov

Jennifer Kuhn, Deputy, *Legislative Analyst's Office* 925 L Street, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 319-8332 Jennifer.kuhn@lao.ca.gov

Jay Lal, State Controller's Office (B-08)

Division of Accounting & Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 324-0256 JLal@sco.ca.gov

George Landon, Deputy Superintendent, Admin. Fiscal Support, Lake Elsinore Unified

School District

545 Chaney Street, Lake Elsinore, CA 92530

Phone: (951) 253-7095

George.Landon@leusd.k12.ca.us

Kimberly Leahy, Department of Finance

Education Unit, Department of Finance, 915 L Street, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0238 Kimberly.Leahy@dof.ca.gov

Amber Lozano, Department of Justice

Child Protection Program, Room H122, 4949 Boradway, Sacramento, CA 95820

Phone: (916) 227-3263 amber.lozano@doj.ca.gov

Michelle Mendoza, MAXIMUS

17310 Red Hill Avenue, Suite 340, Irvine, CA 95403

Phone: (949) 440-0845

michellemendoza@maximus.com

Yazmin Meza, Department of Finance

915 L Street, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0328 Yazmin.meza@dof.ca.gov

Meredith Miller, Director of SB90 Services, MAXIMUS

3130 Kilgore Road, Suite 400, Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

Phone: (972) 490-9990

meredithcmiller@maximus.com

Robert Miyashiro, Education Mandated Cost Network

1121 L Street, Suite 1060, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 446-7517 robertm@sscal.com

Keith Nezaam, Department of Finance

915 L Street, 8th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-8913 Keith.Nezaam@dof.ca.gov

Andy Nichols, Nichols Consulting

1857 44th Street, Sacramento, CA 95819

Phone: (916) 455-3939

andy@nichols-consulting.com

Christian Osmena, Department of Finance

915 L Street, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0328 christian.osmena@dof.ca.gov

Arthur Palkowitz, Stutz Artiano Shinoff & Holtz

Claimant Representative

2488 Historic Decatur Road, Suite 200, San Diego, CA 92106

Phone: (619) 232-3122 apalkowitz@sashlaw.com

Keith Petersen, SixTen & Associates

P.O. Box 340430, Sacramento, CA 95834-0430

Phone: (916) 419-7093 kbpsixten@aol.com

Mark Rewolinski, MAXIMUS

625 Coolidge Drive, Suite 100, Folsom, CA 95630

Phone: (949) 440-0845

markrewolinski@maximus.com

Sandra Reynolds, Reynolds Consulting Group, Inc.

P.O. Box 894059, Temecula, CA 92589

Phone: (951) 303-3034

sandrareynolds 30@msn.com

Donna Richardson, Department of Social Services (A-24)

744 P Street, MS 17-27, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 654-0958

Donna.Richardson@dss.ca.gov

Gregory Rose, Department of Social Services (A-24)

Children and Family Services Division, 744 P Street, MS 8-17-18, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 657-2614 Greg.Rose@dss.ca.gov

Dan Scott, Special Victims Bureau

11515 Colima Rd, D103, Wittier, CA 90604

Phone: (562) 946-8282

Dscott@lasd.org

David Scribner, The Law Office of David E. Scribner, Esq

11347 Folsom Blvd, Suite D, Rancho Cordova, CA 95742

Phone: (916) 207-2848 david@deslawoffice.com

Steve Shields, Shields Consulting Group, Inc.

1536 36th Street, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 454-7310 steve@shieldscg.com

Jim Spano, Chief, Mandated Cost Audits Bureau, State Controller's Office

Division of Audits, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 323-5849 jspano@sco.ca.gov

Dennis Speciale, State Controller's Office

Division of Accounting and Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 324-0254 DSpeciale@sco.ca.gov

Meg Svoboda, Senate Office of Research

1020 N Street, Suite 200, Sacramento, CA

Phone: (916) 651-1500 meg.svoboda@sen.ca.gov

Amy Tang-Paterno, Educational Fiscal Services Consultant, California Department of

Education

Government Affairs, 1430 N Street, Suite 5602, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 322-6630 ATangPaterno@cde.ca.gov

Thomas Todd, Assistant Program Budget Manager, Department of Finance

Education Systems Unit, 915 L Street, 7th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0328 Thomas.Todd@dof.ca.gov

Jolene Tollenaar, MGT of America

2251 Harvard Street, Suite 134, Sacramento, CA 95815

Phone: (916) 443-411

jolene_tollenaar@mgtamer.com

Brian Uhler, Legislative Analyst's Office

925 L Street, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 319-8328 brian.uhler@lao.ca.gov

Marichi Valle, San Jose Unified School District

855 Lenzen Avenue, San Jose, CA 95126

Phone: (408) 535-6141 mvalle@sjusd.org

Kelly Winston, Bureau Chief, Child Welfare Policy & Program Developement Bureau

744 P Street, MS 8-11-87, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 651-6100 kelly.winston@dss.ca.gov

COMMISSION ON STATE MANDATES

980 NINTH STREET, SUITE 300 SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 PHONE: (916) 323-3562 FAX: (916) 445-0278 E-mail: csminfo@csm.ca.gov



December 4, 2015

Mr. Arthur Palkowitz Stutz Artiano Shinoff & Holtz 2488 Historic Decatur Road, Suite 200 San Diego, CA 92106

And Parties, Interested Parties, and Interested Persons (See Mailing List)

Re: Test Claim Decision, Draft Expedited Parameters and Guidelines, Schedule for Comments, and Notice of Hearing

Training for School Employee Mandated Reporters, 14-TC-02
Education Code Sections 44690 and 44691; and Penal Code Section 11165.7
As Added or Amended by: Statutes 2014, Chapter 797 (AB 1432)
Lake Elsinore Unified School District, Claimant

Dear Mr. Palkowitz:

On December 3, 2015, the Commission on State Mandates (Commission) adopted the test claim decision approving the above-entitled matter. State law provides that reimbursement, if any, is subject to Commission approval of parameters and guidelines for reimbursement of the mandated program, approval of a statewide cost estimate, a specific legislative appropriation for such purpose, a timely-filed claim for reimbursement, and subsequent review of the claim by the State Controller's Office.

Following is a description of the responsibilities of all parties and of the Commission during the parameters and guidelines phase.

Draft Expedited Parameters and Guidelines. Pursuant to California Code of Regulations, title 2, section 1183.9, the Commission staff is expediting the parameters and guidelines process by enclosing draft parameters and guidelines to assist the claimant. The proposed reimbursable activities are limited to those approved in the decision by the Commission.

Review of Draft Expedited Parameters and Guidelines. Proposed comments may be filed on staff's draft proposal by **December 24, 2015**. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 1183.9(b).)

<u>Rebuttals.</u> Written rebuttals may be submitted within 15 days of service of comments. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 1183.9(c).)

Adoption of Parameters and Guidelines. After review of the draft expedited parameters and guidelines and all proposed comments, Commission staff will prepare a proposed decision and recommend adoption by the Commission.

Reasonable Reimbursement Methodology and Statewide Estimate of Costs

Test Claimant and Department of Finance Submission of Letter of Intent. Within 30 days of the Commission's adoption of a decision on a test claim, the test claimant and the Department of Finance may notify the executive director of the Commission in writing of their intent to follow the process described in Government Code sections 17557.1—17557.2 and section 1183.11 of the Commission's regulations to develop a joint reasonable reimbursement methodology and statewide estimate of costs for the initial claiming period and budget year for reimbursement of

Mr. Palkowitz December 4, 2015 Page 2

costs mandated by the state. The written notification shall provide all information and filing dates as specified in Government Code section 17557.1(a).

<u>Test Claimant and Department of Finance Submission of Draft Reasonable Reimbursement Methodology and Statewide Estimate of Costs.</u> Pursuant to the plan, the test claimant and the Department of Finance shall submit the *Draft Reasonable Reimbursement Methodology and Statewide Estimate of Costs* to the Commission. See Government Code section 17557.1 for guidance in preparing and filing a timely submission.

Review of Proposed Reasonable Reimbursement Methodology and Statewide Estimate of Costs. Upon receipt of the jointly developed proposals, Commission staff shall notify all recipients that they shall have the opportunity to review and provide written comments concerning the draft reasonable reimbursement methodology and proposed statewide estimate of costs within 15 days of service. The test claimant and Department of Finance may submit written rebuttals to Commission staff.

Adoption of Reasonable Reimbursement Methodology and Statewide Estimate of Costs. At least 10 days prior to the next hearing, Commission staff shall review comments and issue a staff recommendation on whether the Commission should approve the draft reasonable reimbursement methodology and adopt the proposed statewide estimate of costs pursuant to Government Code section 17557.2.

You are advised that comments filed with the Commission are required to be simultaneously served on the other interested parties on the mailing list, and to be accompanied by a proof of service. However, this requirement may also be satisfied by electronically filing your documents. Please see http://www.csm.ca.gov/dropbox.shtml on the Commission's website for instructions on electronic filing. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 1181.3.) If you would like to request an extension of time to file comments, please refer to section 1187.9(a) of the Commission's regulations.

The parameters and guidelines for this matter are set for hearing on **January 22**, **2016**. Sincerely,

Heather Halsey
Executive Director

J:\MANDATES\2014\TC\14-TC-02 (Training for School Employee Mandated Reporters)\Ps&Gs\draft expedited ps&gs.docx

DRAFT EXPEDITED PARAMETERS AND GUIDELINES

Education Code Sections 44691(b) and (c); and Penal Code Section 11165.7(d)

As Added or Amended by:

Statutes 2014, Chapter 797 (AB 1432)

Training for School Employee Mandated Reporters

14-TC-02

Period of reimbursement begins January 1, 2015

I. SUMMARY OF THE MANDATE

On December 3, 2015, the Commission on State Mandates (Commission) adopted a decision finding that Education Code section 44691(b) and (c), and Penal Code section 11165.7(d), as added and amended by the test claim statute, impose a reimbursable state-mandated program on school districts (K-12 school districts and county offices of education) within the meaning of Article XIII B, section 6 of the California Constitution and Government Code section 17514. The Commission approved this test claim for the following reimbursable activities, beginning January 1, 2015:

- 1. Provide annually, within the first six weeks of each school year, and within the first six weeks of employment for school personnel hired during the course of the school year, training in the detection of child abuse and neglect, the proper action that school personnel should take in suspected cases of child abuse and neglect, and information that failure to report is a misdemeanor punishable by up to six months in jail and/or up to a fine of one thousand dollars to the following persons:
 - a. Certificated and classified employees of the school district who are mandated reporters identified in the Penal Code, *except* those working for a school district police or security department; and
 - b. Those persons who are mandated reporters identified in the Penal Code who are working on a school district's behalf to carry out the school district's core mandatory function to educate students.

The training may be provided by either using the online training module developed by California Department of Social Services (CDSS) or an alternative training program that complies with the test claim statute. The costs to develop child abuse and neglect training are not mandated by the state. (Ed. Code § 44691(b)(1) and (c); Pen. Code § 11165.7(d).)

2. Develop a process for all persons required to receive training to provide proof of completing the training within the first six weeks of each school year or within the first six weeks of that person's employment. The process developed may include, but not necessarily be limited to, the use of a sign-in sheet or the submission of a certificate of completion to the applicable governing board or body of the school district. (Ed. Code § 44691(b)(2).)

3. If the online training provided by CDSS is not used, report to the California Department of Education (CDE) the training being used in its place. (Ed. Code § 44691(c).)

All other provisions in Education Code section 44691 and Penal Code 11165.7, as added or amended by the 2014 test claim statute, do not impose a reimbursable state-mandated program.

II. ELIGIBLE CLAIMANTS

Any "school district" as defined in Government Code section 17519, except for community colleges, which incurs increased costs as a result of this mandate is eligible to claim reimbursement.

III. PERIOD OF REIMBURSEMENT

Government Code section 17557(e), states that a test claim shall be submitted on or before June 30 following a given fiscal year to establish eligibility for that fiscal year. The claimant, Lake Elsinore Unified School District, filed the test claim on June 1, 2015, establishing eligibility for reimbursement for the 2013-2014 fiscal year. However, the test claim statutes did not become operative until January 1, 2015. Therefore, costs incurred for the activities in these parameters and guidelines are eligible for reimbursement beginning January 1, 2015.

Reimbursement for state-mandated costs may be claimed as follows:

- 1. Actual costs for one fiscal year shall be included in each claim.
- 2. Pursuant to Government Code section 17561(d)(1)(A), all claims for reimbursement of initial fiscal year costs shall be submitted to the State Controller's Office (Controller) within 120 days of the issuance date for the claiming instructions.
- 3. Pursuant to Government Code section 17560(a), a school district may, by February 15 following the fiscal year in which costs were incurred, file an annual reimbursement claim that details the costs actually incurred for that fiscal year.
- 4. If revised claiming instructions are issued by the Controller pursuant to Government Code section 17558(c), between November 15 and February 15, a school district filing an annual reimbursement claim shall have 120 days following the issuance date of the revised claiming instructions to file a claim. (Gov. Code § 17560(b).)
- 5. If the total costs for a given fiscal year do not exceed \$1,000, no reimbursement shall be allowed except as otherwise allowed by Government Code section 17564(a).
- 6. There shall be no reimbursement for any period in which the Legislature has suspended the operation of a mandate pursuant to state law.

IV. REIMBURSABLE ACTIVITIES

To be eligible for mandated cost reimbursement for any fiscal year, only actual costs may be claimed. Actual costs are those costs actually incurred to implement the mandated activities. Actual costs must be traceable and supported by source documents that show the validity of such costs, when they were incurred, and their relationship to the reimbursable activities. A source document is a document created at or near the same time the actual cost was incurred for the event or activity in question. Source documents may include, but are not limited to, employee time records or time logs, sign-in sheets, invoices, and receipts.

Evidence corroborating the source documents may include, but is not limited to, worksheets, cost allocation reports (system generated), purchase orders, contracts, agendas, training packets, and declarations. Declarations must include a certification or declaration stating, "I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct," and must further comply with the requirements of Code of Civil Procedure section 2015.5. Evidence corroborating the source documents may include data relevant to the reimbursable activities otherwise in compliance with local, state, and federal government requirements. However, corroborating documents cannot be substituted for source documents.

The claimant is only allowed to claim and be reimbursed for increased costs for reimbursable activities identified below. Increased cost is limited to the cost of an activity that the claimant is required to incur as a result of the mandate.

For each eligible claimant that incurs increased costs, the following activities are reimbursable beginning January 1, 2015:

- 1. Provide annually, within the first six weeks of each school year, and within the first six weeks of employment for school personnel hired during the course of the school year, training in the detection of child abuse and neglect, the proper action that school personnel should take in suspected cases of child abuse and neglect, and information that failure to report is a misdemeanor punishable by up to six months in jail and/or up to a fine of one thousand dollars to the following persons:
 - a. Certificated and classified employees of the school district who are mandated reporters identified in the Penal Code, *except* those working for a school district police or security department; and
 - b. Those persons who are mandated reporters identified in the Penal Code who are working on a school district's behalf to carry out the school district's core mandatory function to educate students.
 - The training may be provided by either using the online training module developed by CDSS or an alternative training program that complies with the test claim statute. The costs to develop child abuse and neglect training are *not* mandated by the state. (Ed. Code § 44691(b)(1) and (c); Pen. Code § 11165.7(d).)
- 2. Develop a process for all persons required to receive training to provide proof of completing the training within the first six weeks of each school year or within the first six weeks of that person's employment. The process developed may include, but not necessarily be limited to, the use of a sign-in sheet or the submission of a certificate of completion to the applicable governing board or body of the school district. (Ed. Code § 44691(b)(2).)
- 3. If the online training provided by CDSS is not used, report to the CDE the training being used in its place. (Ed. Code § 44691(c).)

V. CLAIM PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION

Each of the following cost elements must be identified for each reimbursable activity identified in Section IV, Reimbursable Activities, of this document. Each claimed reimbursable cost must be supported by source documentation as described in Section IV. Additionally, each reimbursement claim must be filed in a timely manner.

A. Direct Cost Reporting

Direct costs are those costs incurred specifically for the reimbursable activities. The following direct costs are eligible for reimbursement.

1. Salaries and Benefits

Report each employee implementing the reimbursable activities by name, job classification, and productive hourly rate (total wages and related benefits divided by productive hours). Describe the specific reimbursable activities performed and the hours devoted to each reimbursable activity performed.

2. Materials and Supplies

Report the cost of materials and supplies that have been consumed or expended for the purpose of the reimbursable activities. Purchases shall be claimed at the actual price after deducting discounts, rebates, and allowances received by the claimant. Supplies that are withdrawn from inventory shall be charged on an appropriate and recognized method of costing, consistently applied.

3. Contracted Services

Report the name of the contractor and services performed to implement the reimbursable activities. If the contractor bills for time and materials, report the number of hours spent on the activities and all costs charged. If the contract is a fixed price, report the services that were performed during the period covered by the reimbursement claim. If the contract services are also used for purposes other than the reimbursable activities, only the pro-rata portion of the services used to implement the reimbursable activities can be claimed. Submit contract consultant and attorney invoices with the claim and a description of the contract scope of services.

4. Fixed Assets

Report the purchase price paid for fixed assets (including computers) necessary to implement the reimbursable activities. The purchase price includes taxes, delivery costs, and installation costs. If the fixed asset is also used for purposes other than the reimbursable activities, only the pro-rata portion of the purchase price used to implement the reimbursable activities can be claimed.

5. Training

Report the cost of training an employee to perform the reimbursable activities, as specified in Section IV of this document. Report the name and job classification of each employee preparing for, attending, and/or conducting training necessary to implement the reimbursable activities. Provide the title, subject, and purpose (related to the mandate of the training session), dates attended, and location. If the training encompasses subjects broader than the reimbursable activities, only the pro-rata portion can be claimed. Report employee training time for each applicable reimbursable activity according to the rules of cost element A.1., Salaries and Benefits, and A.2., Materials and Supplies. Report the cost of Consultants who conduct the training according to the rules of cost element A.3., Contracted Services.

B. Indirect Cost Rates

Indirect costs are costs that have been incurred for common or joint purposes. These costs benefit more than one cost objective and cannot be readily identified with a particular final cost objective without effort disproportionate to the results achieved. After direct costs have been determined and assigned to other activities, as appropriate, indirect costs are those remaining to be allocated to benefited cost objectives. A cost may not be allocated as an indirect cost if any other cost incurred for the same purpose, in like circumstances, has been claimed as a direct cost.

Indirect costs may include: (a) the indirect costs originating in each department or agency of the governmental unit carrying out state mandated programs; and (b) the costs of central governmental services distributed through the central service cost allocation plan and not otherwise treated as direct costs.

School districts must use the CDE's approved indirect cost rate for the year that funds are expended.

VI. RECORD RETENTION

Pursuant to Government Code section 17558.5(a), a reimbursement claim for actual costs filed by a local agency or school district pursuant to this chapter¹ is subject to the initiation of an audit by the Controller no later than three years after the date that the actual reimbursement claim is filed or last amended, whichever is later. However, if no funds are appropriated or no payment is made to a claimant for the program for the fiscal year for which the claim is filed, the time for the Controller to initiate an audit shall commence to run from the date of initial payment of the claim. In any case, an audit shall be completed not later than two years after the date that the audit is commenced. All documents used to support the reimbursable activities, as described in Section IV, must be retained during the period subject to audit. If an audit has been initiated by the Controller during the period subject to audit, the retention period is extended until the ultimate resolution of any audit findings.

VII. OFFSETTING REVENUES AND REIMBURSEMENTS

Any offsetting revenue the claimant experiences in the same program as a result of the same statutes or executive orders found to contain the mandate shall be deducted from the costs claimed. In addition, reimbursement for this mandate from any source, including but not limited to, service fees collected, federal funds, and other state funds, shall be identified and deducted from this claim.

VIII. STATE CONTROLLER'S CLAIMING INSTRUCTIONS

Pursuant to Government Code section 17558(b), the Controller shall issue claiming instructions for each mandate that requires state reimbursement not later than 90 days after receiving the adopted parameters and guidelines from the Commission, to assist local agencies and school districts in claiming costs to be reimbursed. The claiming instructions shall be derived from these parameters and guidelines and the decisions on the test claim and parameters and guidelines adopted by the Commission.

_

¹ This refers to Title 2, division 4, part 7, chapter 4 of the Government Code.

Pursuant to Government Code section 17561(d)(1), issuance of the claiming instructions shall constitute a notice of the right of the local agencies and school districts to file reimbursement claims, based upon parameters and guidelines adopted by the Commission.

IX. REMEDIES BEFORE THE COMMISSION

Upon request of a local agency or school district, the Commission shall review the claiming instructions issued by the Controller or any other authorized state agency for reimbursement of mandated costs pursuant to Government Code section 17571. If the Commission determines that the claiming instructions do not conform to the parameters and guidelines, the Commission shall direct the Controller to modify the claiming instructions and the Controller shall modify the claiming instructions to conform to the parameters and guidelines as directed by the Commission.

In addition, requests may be made to amend parameters and guidelines pursuant to Government Code section 17557(d), and California Code of Regulations, title 2, section 1183.17.

X. LEGAL AND FACTUAL BASIS FOR THE PARAMETERS AND GUIDELINES

The decisions adopted for the test claim and parameters and guidelines are legally binding on all parties and provide the legal and factual basis for the parameters and guidelines. The support for the legal and factual findings is found in the administrative record. The administrative record is on file with the Commission.

DECLARATION OF SERVICE BY EMAIL

I, the undersigned, declare as follows:

I am a resident of the County of Sacramento and I am over the age of 18 years, and not a party to the within action. My place of employment is 980 Ninth Street, Suite 300, Sacramento, California 95814.

On December 4, 2015, I served the:

Test Claim Decision, Draft Expedited Parameters and Guidelines, Schedule for Comments, and Notice of Hearing

Training for School Employee Mandated Reporters, 14-TC-02 Education Code Sections 44690 and 44691; and Penal Code Section 11165.7 As Added or Amended by: Statutes 2014, Chapter 797 (AB 1432) Lake Elsinore Unified School District, Claimant

By making it available on the Commission's website and providing notice of how to locate it to the email addresses provided on the attached mailing list.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct, and that this declaration was executed on December 4, 2015 at Sacramento, California.

Jill L. Magee

Commission on State Mandates 980 Ninth Street, Suite 300 Sacramento, CA 95814

(916) 323-3562

COMMISSION ON STATE MANDATES

Mailing List

Last Updated: 10/29/15 Claim Number: 14-TC-02

Matter: Training for School Employee Mandated Reporters

Claimant: Lake Elsinore Unified School District

TO ALL PARTIES, INTERESTED PARTIES, AND INTERESTED PERSONS:

Each commission mailing list is continuously updated as requests are received to include or remove any party or person on the mailing list. A current mailing list is provided with commission correspondence, and a copy of the current mailing list is available upon request at any time. Except as provided otherwise by commission rule, when a party or interested party files any written material with the commission concerning a claim, it shall simultaneously serve a copy of the written material on the parties and interested parties to the claim identified on the mailing list provided by the commission. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 1181.3.)

Amber Alexander, Department of Finance

915 L Street, Sacramento, Ca Phone: (916) 445-0328 Amber.Alexander@dof.ca.gov

Socorro Aquino, State Controller's Office

Division of Audits, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 322-7522 SAquino@sco.ca.gov

 ${\bf Harmeet\ Barkschat}, {\it Mandate\ Resource\ Services, LLC}$

5325 Elkhorn Blvd. #307, Sacramento, CA 95842

Phone: (916) 727-1350 harmeet@calsdrc.com

Lacey Baysinger, State Controller's Office

Division of Accounting and Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 324-0254 lbaysinger@sco.ca.gov

Julia Blair, Senior Commission Counsel, Commission on State Mandates

980 9th Street, Suite 300, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 323-3562 julia.blair@csm.ca.gov

Mike Brown, School Innovations & Advocacy

5200 Golden Foothill Parkway, El Dorado Hills, CA 95762

Phone: (916) 669-5116

mikeb@sia-us.com

J. Bradley Burgess, MGT of America

895 La Sierra Drive, Sacramento, CA 95864

Phone: (916)595-2646 Bburgess@mgtamer.com

Gwendolyn Carlos, State Controller's Office

Division of Accounting and Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 323-0706 gcarlos@sco.ca.gov

Pete Cervinka, Department of Social Services (A-24)

744 P Street, MS 17-27, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 657-2598 pete.cervinka@dss.ca.gov

Annette Chinn, Cost Recovery Systems, Inc.

705-2 East Bidwell Street, #294, Folsom, CA 95630

Phone: (916) 939-7901 achinners@aol.com

David Cichella, California School Management Group

3130-C Inland Empire Blvd., Ontario, CA 91764

Phone: (209) 834-0556 dcichella@csmcentral.com

Patricia Cos, State Board of Education

1430 N Street, Suite #5111, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 319-0827 PdeCos@cde.ca.gov

Joshua Daniels, Attorney, California School Boards Association

3251 Beacon Blvd, West Sacramento, CA 95691

Phone: (916) 669-3266 jdaniels@csba.org

Marieta Delfin, State Controller's Office

Division of Accounting and Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 322-4320 mdelfin@sco.ca.gov

Andra Donovan, San Diego Unified School District

Legal Services Office, 4100 Normal Street, Room 2148, San Diego, CA 92103

Phone: (619) 725-5630 adonovan@sandi.net

Florence Eng, Internal Auditor, San Jose Unified School District

855 Lenzen Avenue, San Jose, CA 95126

Phone: (408) 535-6144

feng@sjusd.org

$\textbf{Donna Ferebee}, Department\ of\ Finance$

915 L Street, Suite 1280, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-3274

donna.ferebee@dof.ca.gov

Chris Ferguson, Department of Finance

Education Systems Unit, 915 L Street, 7th Floor, 915 L Street, 7th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-3274 Chris.Ferguson@dof.ca.gov

Susan Geanacou, Department of Finance

915 L Street, Suite 1280, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-3274 susan.geanacou@dof.ca.gov

Dillon Gibbons, Legislative Representative, California Special Districts Association

1112 I Street Bridge, Suite 200, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 442-7887 dillong@csda.net

Paul Golaszewski, Legislative Analyst's Office

925 L Street, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 319-8341 Paul.Golaszewski@lao.ca.gov

Rebecca Hamilton, Department of Finance

Education Systems Unit, 915 L Street, 7th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0328

Rebecca.Hamilton@dof.ca.gov

Ed Hanson, Department of Finance

Education Systems Unit, 915 L Street, 7th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0328 ed.hanson@dof.ca.gov

Mark Ibele, Senate Budget & Fiscal Review Committee

California State Senate, State Capitol Room 5019, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 651-4103 Mark.Ibele@sen.ca.gov

Michael Johnston, Clovis Unified School District

1450 Herndon Ave, Clovis, CA 93611-0599

Phone: (559) 327-9000

michaeljohnston@clovisusd.k12.ca.us

Lorena Jung, San Jose Unified School District

855 Lenzen Avenue, San Jose, CA 95126

Phone: (408) 535-6000 ljung@sjusd.org

Jill Kanemasu, State Controller's Office

Division of Accounting and Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 322-9891 jkanemasu@sco.ca.gov

Dan Kaplan, Fiscal & Policy Analyst, Legislative Analyst's Office

925 L Street, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 319-8353 Dan.Kaplan@lao.ca.gov

Jennifer Kuhn, Deputy, *Legislative Analyst's Office* 925 L Street, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 319-8332 Jennifer.kuhn@lao.ca.gov

Jay Lal, State Controller's Office (B-08)

Division of Accounting & Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 324-0256 JLal@sco.ca.gov

George Landon, Deputy Superintendent, Admin. Fiscal Support, Lake Elsinore Unified

School District

545 Chaney Street, Lake Elsinore, CA 92530

Phone: (951) 253-7095

George.Landon@leusd.k12.ca.us

Kimberly Leahy, Department of Finance

Education Unit, Department of Finance, 915 L Street, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0238 Kimberly.Leahy@dof.ca.gov

Amber Lozano, Department of Justice

Child Protection Program, Room H122, 4949 Boradway, Sacramento, CA 95820

Phone: (916) 227-3263 amber.lozano@doj.ca.gov

Michelle Mendoza, MAXIMUS

17310 Red Hill Avenue, Suite 340, Irvine, CA 95403

Phone: (949) 440-0845

michellemendoza@maximus.com

Yazmin Meza, Department of Finance

915 L Street, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0328 Yazmin.meza@dof.ca.gov

Meredith Miller, Director of SB90 Services, MAXIMUS

3130 Kilgore Road, Suite 400, Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

Phone: (972) 490-9990

meredithcmiller@maximus.com

Robert Miyashiro, Education Mandated Cost Network

1121 L Street, Suite 1060, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 446-7517 robertm@sscal.com

Keith Nezaam, Department of Finance

915 L Street, 8th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-8913 Keith.Nezaam@dof.ca.gov

Andy Nichols, Nichols Consulting

1857 44th Street, Sacramento, CA 95819

Phone: (916) 455-3939

andy@nichols-consulting.com

Christian Osmena, Department of Finance

915 L Street, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0328 christian.osmena@dof.ca.gov

Arthur Palkowitz, Stutz Artiano Shinoff & Holtz

Claimant Representative

2488 Historic Decatur Road, Suite 200, San Diego, CA 92106

Phone: (619) 232-3122 apalkowitz@sashlaw.com

Keith Petersen, SixTen & Associates

P.O. Box 340430, Sacramento, CA 95834-0430

Phone: (916) 419-7093 kbpsixten@aol.com

Mark Rewolinski, MAXIMUS

625 Coolidge Drive, Suite 100, Folsom, CA 95630

Phone: (949) 440-0845

markrewolinski@maximus.com

Sandra Reynolds, Reynolds Consulting Group, Inc.

P.O. Box 894059, Temecula, CA 92589

Phone: (951) 303-3034

sandrareynolds 30@msn.com

Donna Richardson, Department of Social Services (A-24)

744 P Street, MS 17-27, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 654-0958

Donna.Richardson@dss.ca.gov

Gregory Rose, Department of Social Services (A-24)

Children and Family Services Division, 744 P Street, MS 8-17-18, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 657-2614 Greg.Rose@dss.ca.gov

Dan Scott, Special Victims Bureau

11515 Colima Rd, D103, Wittier, CA 90604

Phone: (562) 946-8282

Dscott@lasd.org

David Scribner, The Law Office of David E. Scribner, Esq.

11347 Folsom Blvd, Suite D, Rancho Cordova, CA 95742

Phone: (916) 207-2848 david@deslawoffice.com

Steve Shields, Shields Consulting Group, Inc.

1536 36th Street, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 454-7310 steve@shieldscg.com

Jim Spano, Chief, Mandated Cost Audits Bureau, State Controller's Office

Division of Audits, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 323-5849 jspano@sco.ca.gov

Dennis Speciale, State Controller's Office

Division of Accounting and Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 324-0254 DSpeciale@sco.ca.gov

Meg Svoboda, Senate Office of Research

1020 N Street, Suite 200, Sacramento, CA

Phone: (916) 651-1500 meg.svoboda@sen.ca.gov

Amy Tang-Paterno, Educational Fiscal Services Consultant, California Department of

Education

Government Affairs, 1430 N Street, Suite 5602, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 322-6630 ATangPaterno@cde.ca.gov

Thomas Todd, Assistant Program Budget Manager, *Department of Finance*

Education Systems Unit, 915 L Street, 7th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0328 Thomas.Todd@dof.ca.gov

Jolene Tollenaar, MGT of America

2251 Harvard Street, Suite 134, Sacramento, CA 95815

Phone: (916) 443-411

jolene_tollenaar@mgtamer.com

Brian Uhler, Legislative Analyst's Office

925 L Street, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 319-8328 brian.uhler@lao.ca.gov

Marichi Valle, San Jose Unified School District

855 Lenzen Avenue, San Jose, CA 95126

Phone: (408) 535-6141 mvalle@sjusd.org

Kelly Winston, Bureau Chief, Child Welfare Policy & Program Developement Bureau

744 P Street, MS 8-11-87, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 651-6100 kelly.winston@dss.ca.gov



RECEIVED

December 24, 2015

Commission on
State Mandates

California State Controller

Division of Accounting and Reporting

December 24, 2015

Ms. Heather Halsey Executive Director Commission on State Mandates 980 Ninth Street, Suite 300 Sacramento, CA 95814

Re:

Test Claim Decision, Draft Expedited Parameters and Guidelines, and Notice of Hearing

Training for School Employee Mandated Reporters, 14-TC-02

Education Code Sections 44690 and 44691; and Penal Code Section 11165.7

As Added or Amended by: Statutes 2014, Chapter 797 (AB 1432)

Lake Elsinore Unified School District, Claimant

Dear Ms. Halsey:

The State Controller's Office reviewed the draft expedited Parameters and Guidelines for the Training for School Employee Mandated Reporters program and recommends no changes.

If you have any questions regarding the above, please contact Angelo Joseph by telephone at (916) 322-8733, or by email at AJoseph@sco.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

JAY LAL, Manager

Local Reimbursements Section

DECLARATION OF SERVICE BY EMAIL

I, the undersigned, declare as follows:

I am a resident of the County of Sacramento and I am over the age of 18 years, and not a party to the within action. My place of employment is 980 Ninth Street, Suite 300, Sacramento, California 95814.

On December 24, 2015, I served the:

SCO Comments

Training for School Employee Mandated Reporters, 14-TC-02 Education Code Sections 44690 and 44691; and Penal Code Section 11165.7 as Added or Amended by: Statutes 2014, Chapter 797 (AB 1432) Lake Elsinore Unified School District, Claimant

By making it available on the Commission's website and providing notice of how to locate it to the email addresses provided on the attached mailing list.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct, and that this declaration was executed on December 24, 2015 at Sacramento, California.

Lorenzo Duran

Commission on State Mandates 980 Ninth Street, Suite 300 Sacramento, CA 95814

(916) 323-3562

COMMISSION ON STATE MANDATES

Mailing List

Last Updated: 12/9/15 Claim Number: 14-TC-02

Matter: Training for School Employee Mandated Reporters

Claimant: Lake Elsinore Unified School District

TO ALL PARTIES, INTERESTED PARTIES, AND INTERESTED PERSONS:

Each commission mailing list is continuously updated as requests are received to include or remove any party or person on the mailing list. A current mailing list is provided with commission correspondence, and a copy of the current mailing list is available upon request at any time. Except as provided otherwise by commission rule, when a party or interested party files any written material with the commission concerning a claim, it shall simultaneously serve a copy of the written material on the parties and interested parties to the claim identified on the mailing list provided by the commission. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 1181.3.)

Amber Alexander, Department of Finance

915 L Street, Sacramento, Ca Phone: (916) 445-0328 Amber.Alexander@dof.ca.gov

Socorro Aquino, State Controller's Office

Division of Audits, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 322-7522 SAquino@sco.ca.gov

 ${\bf Harmeet\ Barkschat}, {\it Mandate\ Resource\ Services, LLC}$

5325 Elkhorn Blvd. #307, Sacramento, CA 95842

Phone: (916) 727-1350 harmeet@calsdrc.com

Lacey Baysinger, State Controller's Office

Division of Accounting and Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 324-0254 lbaysinger@sco.ca.gov

Julia Blair, Senior Commission Counsel, Commission on State Mandates

980 9th Street, Suite 300, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 323-3562 julia.blair@csm.ca.gov

Mike Brown, School Innovations & Advocacy

5200 Golden Foothill Parkway, El Dorado Hills, CA 95762

Phone: (916) 669-5116

mikeb@sia-us.com

J. Bradley Burgess, MGT of America

895 La Sierra Drive, Sacramento, CA 95864

Phone: (916)595-2646 Bburgess@mgtamer.com

Gwendolyn Carlos, State Controller's Office

Division of Accounting and Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 323-0706 gcarlos@sco.ca.gov

Pete Cervinka, Department of Social Services (A-24)

744 P Street, MS 17-27, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 657-2598 pete.cervinka@dss.ca.gov

Annette Chinn, Cost Recovery Systems, Inc.

705-2 East Bidwell Street, #294, Folsom, CA 95630

Phone: (916) 939-7901 achinners@aol.com

David Cichella, California School Management Group

3130-C Inland Empire Blvd., Ontario, CA 91764

Phone: (209) 834-0556 dcichella@csmcentral.com

Patricia Cos, State Board of Education

1430 N Street, Suite #5111, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 319-0827 PdeCos@cde.ca.gov

Joshua Daniels, Attorney, California School Boards Association

3251 Beacon Blvd, West Sacramento, CA 95691

Phone: (916) 669-3266 jdaniels@csba.org

Marieta Delfin, State Controller's Office

Division of Accounting and Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 322-4320 mdelfin@sco.ca.gov

Andra Donovan, San Diego Unified School District

Legal Services Office, 4100 Normal Street, Room 2148, San Diego, CA 92103

Phone: (619) 725-5630 adonovan@sandi.net

Florence Eng, Internal Auditor, San Jose Unified School District

855 Lenzen Avenue, San Jose, CA 95126

Phone: (408) 535-6144 feng@sjusd.org

Donna Ferebee, Department of Finance

915 L Street, Suite 1280, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-3274

donna.ferebee@dof.ca.gov

Chris Ferguson, Department of Finance

Education Systems Unit, 915 L Street, 7th Floor, 915 L Street, 7th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-3274 Chris.Ferguson@dof.ca.gov

Susan Geanacou, Department of Finance

915 L Street, Suite 1280, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-3274 susan.geanacou@dof.ca.gov

Dillon Gibbons, Legislative Representative, California Special Districts Association

1112 I Street Bridge, Suite 200, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 442-7887 dillong@csda.net

Paul Golaszewski, Legislative Analyst's Office

925 L Street, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 319-8341 Paul.Golaszewski@lao.ca.gov

Rebecca Hamilton, Department of Finance

Education Systems Unit, 915 L Street, 7th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0328

Rebecca.Hamilton@dof.ca.gov

Ed Hanson, Department of Finance

Education Systems Unit, 915 L Street, 7th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0328 ed.hanson@dof.ca.gov

Mark Ibele, Senate Budget & Fiscal Review Committee

California State Senate, State Capitol Room 5019, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 651-4103 Mark.Ibele@sen.ca.gov

Michael Johnston, Clovis Unified School District

1450 Herndon Ave, Clovis, CA 93611-0599

Phone: (559) 327-9000

michaeljohnston@clovisusd.k12.ca.us

Lorena Jung, San Jose Unified School District

855 Lenzen Avenue, San Jose, CA 95126

Phone: (408) 535-6000 ljung@sjusd.org

Jill Kanemasu, State Controller's Office

Division of Accounting and Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 322-9891 jkanemasu@sco.ca.gov

Dan Kaplan, Fiscal & Policy Analyst, Legislative Analyst's Office

925 L Street, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 319-8353 Dan.Kaplan@lao.ca.gov

Jennifer Kuhn, Deputy, *Legislative Analyst's Office* 925 L Street, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 319-8332 Jennifer.kuhn@lao.ca.gov

Jay Lal, State Controller's Office (B-08)

Division of Accounting & Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 324-0256 JLal@sco.ca.gov

George Landon, Deputy Superintendent, Admin. Fiscal Support, Lake Elsinore Unified

School District

545 Chaney Street, Lake Elsinore, CA 92530

Phone: (951) 253-7095

George.Landon@leusd.k12.ca.us

Kimberly Leahy, Department of Finance

Education Unit, Department of Finance, 915 L Street, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0238 Kimberly.Leahy@dof.ca.gov

Amber Lozano, Department of Justice

Child Protection Program, Room H122, 4949 Boradway, Sacramento, CA 95820

Phone: (916) 227-3263 amber.lozano@doj.ca.gov

Michelle Mendoza, MAXIMUS

17310 Red Hill Avenue, Suite 340, Irvine, CA 95403

Phone: (949) 440-0845

michellemendoza@maximus.com

Yazmin Meza, Department of Finance

915 L Street, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0328 Yazmin.meza@dof.ca.gov

Meredith Miller, Director of SB90 Services, MAXIMUS

3130 Kilgore Road, Suite 400, Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

Phone: (972) 490-9990

meredithcmiller@maximus.com

Robert Miyashiro, Education Mandated Cost Network

1121 L Street, Suite 1060, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 446-7517 robertm@sscal.com

Keith Nezaam, Department of Finance

915 L Street, 8th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-8913 Keith.Nezaam@dof.ca.gov

Andy Nichols, Nichols Consulting

1857 44th Street, Sacramento, CA 95819

Phone: (916) 455-3939

andy@nichols-consulting.com

Christian Osmena, Department of Finance

915 L Street, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0328 christian.osmena@dof.ca.gov

Arthur Palkowitz, Stutz Artiano Shinoff & Holtz

Claimant Representative

2488 Historic Decatur Road, Suite 200, San Diego, CA 92106

Phone: (619) 232-3122 apalkowitz@sashlaw.com

Keith Petersen, SixTen & Associates

P.O. Box 340430, Sacramento, CA 95834-0430

Phone: (916) 419-7093 kbpsixten@aol.com

Mark Rewolinski, MAXIMUS

625 Coolidge Drive, Suite 100, Folsom, CA 95630

Phone: (949) 440-0845

markrewolinski@maximus.com

Sandra Reynolds, Reynolds Consulting Group, Inc.

P.O. Box 894059, Temecula, CA 92589

Phone: (951) 303-3034

sandrareynolds 30@msn.com

Donna Richardson, Department of Social Services (A-24)

744 P Street, MS 17-27, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 654-0958

Donna.Richardson@dss.ca.gov

Gregory Rose, Department of Social Services (A-24)

Children and Family Services Division, 744 P Street, MS 8-17-18, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 657-2614 Greg.Rose@dss.ca.gov

Dan Scott, Special Victims Bureau

11515 Colima Rd, D103, Wittier, CA 90604

Phone: (562) 946-8282

Dscott@lasd.org

David Scribner, The Law Office of David E. Scribner, Esq.

11347 Folsom Blvd, Suite D, Rancho Cordova, CA 95742

Phone: (916) 207-2848 david@deslawoffice.com

Carla Shelton, Commission on State Mandates

980 9th Street, Suite 300, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 327-6490 carla.shelton@csm.ca.gov

Steve Shields, Shields Consulting Group, Inc.

1536 36th Street, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 454-7310 steve@shieldscg.com

Jim Spano, Chief, Mandated Cost Audits Bureau, State Controller's Office

Division of Audits, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 323-5849 ispano@sco.ca.gov

Dennis Speciale, State Controller's Office

Division of Accounting and Reporting, 3301 C Street, Suite 700, Sacramento, CA 95816

Phone: (916) 324-0254 DSpeciale@sco.ca.gov

Meg Svoboda, Senate Office of Research

1020 N Street, Suite 200, Sacramento, CA

Phone: (916) 651-1500 meg.svoboda@sen.ca.gov

Amy Tang-Paterno, Educational Fiscal Services Consultant, California Department of

Education

Government Affairs, 1430 N Street, Suite 5602, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 322-6630 ATangPaterno@cde.ca.gov

Thomas Todd, Assistant Program Budget Manager, Department of Finance

Education Systems Unit, 915 L Street, 7th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 445-0328 Thomas.Todd@dof.ca.gov

Jolene Tollenaar, MGT of America

2251 Harvard Street, Suite 134, Sacramento, CA 95815

Phone: (916) 443-411

jolene tollenaar@mgtamer.com

Brian Uhler, Legislative Analyst's Office

925 L Street, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 319-8328 brian.uhler@lao.ca.gov

Marichi Valle, San Jose Unified School District

855 Lenzen Avenue, San Jose, CA 95126

Phone: (408) 535-6141 mvalle@sjusd.org

Kelly Winston, Bureau Chief, Child Welfare Policy & Program Developement Bureau

744 P Street, MS 8-11-87, Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone: (916) 651-6100 kelly.winston@dss.ca.gov